
1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting Agenda  
Continuum of Care (CoC) Board 

Wednesday, November 13, 2024 
2:00-3:30pm 

Ventura County Office of Education 
5100 Adolfo Road, Camarillo 

Oxnard Room 
 

Zoom Meeting ID: 838 0635 1730 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806351730 

1. Call to Order 

2. Board Comments 

3. CoC Staff Comments 

4. Public Comments: An opportunity for the public to participate in public meetings by addressing the Ventura 
County Continuum of Care Board in connection with one or more agenda or non-agenda items. Public 
comment is limited to 3 minutes per person during the opening part of the meeting and per item. The time 
allotment can be increased or decreased by the Chair depending on the number of speakers. This meeting is 
subject to the Brown Act and public comments may be submitted by using one of the following options: 

 Email in advance of the meeting: If you wish to make a written public comment, the comment must be 
submitted via email no later than 4:30pm on the day prior to the Board meeting. Send emails to: 
venturacoc@ventura.org  Please indicate the agenda item you would like to speak on if relevant and 
whether you would like your message read by staff or if you will be participating in person. 

 During the meeting: Participants attending online may use the chat function in zoom to indicate they 
would like to make a comment. Participants attending in-person can complete a public comment card 
indicating which item they would like to comment on and submit to the Board Chair. Staff will call on 
participants during the public comment section of the meeting or during specific items following staff 
presentation of the item. 

 

Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 
 
 

5. Approval of Board Minutes from October 9, 2024. 
 

6. Receive and File a Report on Progress to End Homelessness Among Veterans in Ventura County. 
(Presenter Alicia Morales-McKinney) 
 

7. Approval of the State Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program Round 5 Timeline 
with Authorization to release Requests for Proposals for HHAP Round 5. (Presenter Alicia Morales-
McKinney). 

 

8. Approval of a Reallocation of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care 
(CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-25 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) Grant and Authorization for Ventura County CoC Staff 
to Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a new subrecipient (Presenter Jennifer Harkey) 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806351730
mailto:venturacoc@ventura.org


1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting Minutes  
Continuum of Care (CoC) Board 
Wednesday, October 9, 2024 

2:00-4:00pm 
Ventura County Office of Education 

5100 Adolfo Road, Camarillo 
Oxnard Room 

 
Call to Order: Manuel Minjares, Vice Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:03pm.  
 

Board Members: Emilio Ramirez, Dr. Sevet Johnson, Manuel Minjares, Jack Edelstein, Kevin Clerici, 

Mara Malch, Pauline Preciado, Katherine Aguilar, Dawn Dyer (attended online, non-voting) 
 

Absent: Paul Drevenstedt, Ingrid Hardy, Stefany Gonzalez, Michael Nigh 
 

CoC Staff: Alicia Morales-McKinney, Felipe Flores, Morgan Saveliff, Christy Madden  
 

Board Comments: none.  
 

CoC Staff Comments: Alicia Morales-McKinney shared that CoC staff is still awaiting the HHAP 5 fully 

executed agreement from the State. Once received, CoC staff will return to the Board to request approval to 

open an RFP. Alicia also reminded the Board that the HUD CoC Builds RFP closes on Friday and staff will 

begin reviewing applications. Felipe Flores shared that we were awarded $56,000 for the latest round of ESG 

funding and contracts have been issued to U.S. Vets, Harbor House, and Mercy House.  
 

Public Comments: none.  

Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 
 

5. Approval of Board Minutes from September 11, 2024. 
Jack Edelstein moved to approve; Kevin Clerici was second; all in favor. 
 

6. Approval of FY24 HUD CoC project rankings for new and renewal applications, Authorization for Staff 
to submit the FY24 HUD CoC Consolidated Application, and Authorization for Staff to open a Request 
for Proposals for Rapid Re-Housing upon award from HUD (Presenter Alicia Morales-McKinney) 
Alicia reviewed the HUD CoC project rankings for new and renewal applications with the Board. Alicia 
reviewed project scoring criteria with the Board and shared that projects that fall into tier 1 are 
traditionally renewed and projects that fall into tier 2 are at risk. Alicia explained that Salvation Army 
PSH is currently serving 5 individuals and if the $67,985 that falls in tier 2 is not renewed, the program 
will be encouraged to apply for alternate funding such as HHAP 5. If the project is awarded full funds, 
the CoC team will work with the Salvation Army to increase performance and potentially consider a 
reallocation of funds at the next HUD CoC funding cycle. Alicia further shared that if the $223,295 of 
RRH funds in tier 2 is awarded, Data Committee recommended for CoC staff to open a new RFP to 
select new subrecipients for that funding. Alicia lastly shared that one DV Bonus and 2 CoC bonus 
applications were selected; one for Coalition of Family Harmony to expand their current DV joint TH 
RRH project, Many Mansions for Rancho Sierra PSH, and MESA for TH RRH for TAY. The Rank and 
Review Policy, Scoring Criteria, and full project ranking can be found on the CoC Website.  
 
Kevin Clerici moved to approve; Manuel Minjares was second; all in favor.  

 



2 
 

7. Receive a notice of two (2) upcoming Board Member vacancies, receive nominations to fill Board 
seats, and approve three (3) Board Members to serve as the VC CoC Nominations Committee 
(Presenter Felipe Flores). 
Felipe Flores shared that two Board members, Michael Nigh and Kevin Clerici, will be terming off this 
year and requested for Board approval to release solicitations to fill the Boad vacancies and to 
nominate 3 Board Members to serve on the VC CoC Nomination committee. The Board seats would be 
filled effective January 1, 2025. CoC staff shared that Kevin fulfilled the business sector and geographic 
region of Ventura and Michael fulfilled the affordable housing sector and county-wide region. CoC staff 
explained that we will want to look into filling those sectors when reviewing nominations.  
 
Jack Edelstein, Manuel Minjares, and Pauline Preciado volunteered to serve as the VC CoC 
Nominations Committee.  
 
Pauline Preciado moved to approve; Jack Edelstein was second; all in favor.  

 

8. Approval of the 2025 Homeless Count Implementation Plan (Presenter Alicia Morales-McKinney) 
Alicia shared that the upcoming PIT Count will take place the morning of January 22, 2025 and shared 
the Homeless Count Implementation Plan and timeline with the Board. Alicia shared that CoC staff will 
coordinate with community leads and volunteers to conduct both the sheltered and the unsheltered 
count using the Simtech Solutions mobile app. CoC staff will also work with local law enforcement, 
backpack medicine, and outreach providers to conduct the encampment counts over the allowed 7-
day window beginning on the day of the Count. Lastly, CoC staff will coordinate with HMIS and all 
housing and shelter providers to collect data for the Housing Inventory Chart (HIC). All data collected 
will be submitted to HUD in April. CoC staff, along with the Housing and Services Committee, will 
release a post-Count survey to all volunteers to request feedback. The full Implementation Plan can be 
found on the VC CoC Website.  
 
Pauline inquired how many volunteers CoC staff is aiming to recruit. Alicia shared historically we have 
aimed for 500 volunteers. Jenn further shared that volunteers cannot go to encampments and must 
survey in pairs. Each city has different needs depending on population with larger numbers of 
volunteers being needed in Oxnard, Ventura, and Thousand Oaks.  
 
Manuel Minjares moved to approve; Jack Edelstein was second; all in favor.  
 

9. Approval of the updated VC CoC Coordinated Entry System Pathways to Home Policies and 
Procedures (Presenter: Chris Russell) 
Chris Russell shared updated VC CoC CES PTH policies and procedures with the Board and outlined 
some significant changes. Chris shared that the requirement of having a Vulnerability Assessment Tool 
(VAT) score of 19 or higher to qualify for PSH has been changed to a recommendation which will 
potentially allow for more people to qualify for PSH. Alicia and Chris shared that this specifically could 
benefit those in shelter who may have lower VAT scores due to being sheltered but are still highly 
vulnerable and in need of PSH. The full policies and procedures can be found on the VC CoC Website.  
 

 Board members thanked Chris for the update and highlighted the benefits of changing the VAT score 
of 19 to a recommendation. Kevin Clerici also encouraged the HMIS team to make the PTH meetings 
weekly rather than biweekly as more housing units come online.  

 
 Kevin Clerici moved to approve; Jack Edelstein was second; all in favor.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

10.  Approval of the Updated 2024 Governance Charter (Presenter Felipe Flores) 
Felipe Flores shared the updated 2024 Governance Charter and reviewed the VC CoC Alliance and 
Committee scope of work with the Board. Felipe Flores further shared that The Partnership for Safe 
Families and Communities in collaboration with the County’s Diversity Equity and Inclusion Division is 
working to create a Youth Action Board Subcommittee. Alicia shared that the scope of work for each 
committee was developed in collaboration with the committee members and thanked everyone for 
their ongoing support. The full Governance Charter can be found on the VC CoC Website.  
 
Manuel Minjares moved to approve; Emilio Ramirez was second; all in favor.  
 

 

11. Receive and File HMIS/CES Quarterly Updates (Presenter Chris Russell) 
Chris Russell shared program updates with the Board and shared data for the current federal fiscal 
year. Chris shared that currently there are 44 agencies participating in HMIS and 247 HMIS Licensed 
Users. Chris further shared that 3 new projects have been onboarded so far this fiscal year, including 
the Homeless Liaison Unit (HLU) which is comprised of sheriff deputies specifically dedicated to serving 
the homeless population. The HLU will have ability to access HMIS and submit referrals to programs 
and resources through the system. Lastly, Chris shared some updates on system improvement efforts 
for HMIS. Chris shared that the HMIS vendor Wellsky, the HMIS team, and CoC staff met to discuss 
system issues and shared a presentation with the Board which can be found on the CoC Website.  
 
CoC Board Members discussed the benefits and potential concerns with including law enforcement in 
HMIS. Dr. Sevet Johnson shared that the deputies in the HLU have been hand picked because of their 
background and have been deemed fit to serve the homeless population. The goal of the HLU is not to 
cite or police, it is to provide resources to the homeless community and safety for providers. Jenn 
Harkey (Interim Homeless Solutions Director) also shared that agreements are in place with each HLU 
deputy and access to the system is restricted. The HLU officers will be able to see if clients are 
connected to services,  contact information for assigned case managers, and will be able to make 
referrals within the system, but will not be able to see in depth case details. Chris Russel and Jenn 
Harkey also shared that each user has an HMIS license and HMIS staff can run transaction reports if 
there is an assumption that the system is being misused.  
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 

 
November 13, 2024 
 
VC CoC Governance Board 

 
SUBJECT: Receive and File a Report on Progress to End Homelessness Among Veterans in 
Ventura County. 

 
VC CoC staff have meetings on a weekly basis to review homeless veteran cases and focus on 
strategies for ending veteran homelessness in Ventura County. VC CoC staff and Veteran Affairs (VA) 
staff continue to meet to coordinate efforts on how to achieve Functional Zero, Ending Veteran 
Homelessness by 2025 by incorporating the “Ventura One Team”. The “Ventura One Team” overall 
goal is to act as collective to identify all Veterans experiencing homelessness; triage them quickly to a 
housing resource; and use case conferencing, navigation, and intentional bridges to rapidly place 
Veterans into permanent housing.  
 
Veterans “One Team” has expanded its membership including U.S.VETS, and A Community of Friends.   
This increased membership has provided value and commitment to ending Veteran Homelessness in 
Ventura County by expanding street outreach, permanent housing and permanent supportive 
housing. Current partnerships include Salvation Army Supportive Services for Veteran Families, 
Salvation Army Grant Per Diem Program, Turning Point Foundation Veterans Transitional House, Gold 
Coast Veterans Foundation, Mercy House Shelter, Many Mansions, Veterans Affairs HUD-VASH, 
Veteran Affairs Coordinated Entry System and VC CoC. 
 
Recently, “One Team” expanded outreach services joining Backpack Medicine weekly outreach 
events and improved partnership with the Ventura County Veterans D.E.L.T.A Unit at VC Jail by 
providing in-reach services and case management services when an individual self-reports as an 
unhoused Veteran.  
 
Below is each organizations efforts between 1/1/2024- 10/31/2024 (duplicate data is reported as 
a Veteran may receive services from more than one agency to ensure full wrap around services 
are rendered): 

➢ 31 homeless veterans have been screened and accepted by VASH 
➢ 110 homeless veterans were placed in the SSVF Rapid Re-Housing program. All of 

these veterans are working with Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing (HUD-VASH) team 
for permanent housing, 50% were permanently housed and the remaining were 
matched to Ventura Springs. 

➢ 18 At Risk veterans have been served by SSVF-Homeless Prevention and remained 
housed or re-housed. 

➢ 3 homeless veteran households have been staying in Project Roomkey motels for non-
congregate shelter. These veterans are working with Gold Coast Veterans Foundation, the 
Whole Person Care team and Veteran Affairs to find permanent housing and apply for 
eligible benefits. Of the 3 Veterans, all have been matched with Ventura Springs. 

➢ 4 homeless veterans have been placed in Salvation Army’s VA GPD program.  Of the 4 
veterans, 1 have been placed in Permanent Housing and remaining have been matched 
with Ventura Springs and Ormond Beach.  

➢ 7 homeless veterans have been served in transitional housing at Turning Point 
Foundation while working on a housing plan.  Of the 7, 2 have been placed with a 
VASH voucher and remaining have been matched with Ventura Springs. 

➢ 48 homeless veterans have been served by street outreach services with Gold Coast 



Veterans. Of the 48, 11 have been placed in positive housing destinations, and 7 placed 
in permanent housing. 

➢ 74 homeless veterans have been served by services coordination/prevention services 
with Gold Coast Veterans.  

➢ 51 homeless veterans have been served by street outreach services with U.S.VETS. 
➢ 100  Veterans entered HMIS and of the 100, 36 homeless veterans have been 

permanently housed via CoC Providers and Veteran Providers. 
➢ 60 have been matched to permanent housing opportunities such as Ventura Spring 

and Ormond Beach with 14 remaining on the Verified By Name list pending transition 
to higher level of care, out of county requests and city specific housing placements. 

 

Month  System inflow per 
month:  

 

System outflow 
per month: 

January 9 
 

3 
 

February 11 
 

2 
 

March 8 
 

4 

April 13 
 

6 
 

May 5 
 

6 (positive) 
 

June 5 
 

5 (positive) 
 

July 9 
 

5 
 

August 15 
 

1 
 

September 14 
 

3 
 

October 11 
 

1 
 

 Total: 100 Total: 36 

 Note: 10 Veterans remain in HMIS from previous fiscal year. “One Team” continues to work 
on data quality efforts, deduplication efforts. 

 
As of November 1, 2024, there are 74 unhoused veterans on the Veterans Verified by name list, 
and of those 74, 60 are matched to the new Ventura Springs Housing Development and other 
permanent housing projects such as Ormond Beach. During the 2024-2025 Fiscal year, more 
available resources will become available through resources such as Cabrillo Economic 
Development Center Dolores Huerta Gardens with 13 additional Veteran units for unhoused 
Veterans.  



 

 

 

 

 

November 13, 2024 

CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Approval of the State Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program 

Round 5 Timeline with Authorization to release Requests for Proposals for HHAP Round 5. 

 
BACKGROUND:  The Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) grant from the State 

provides funding for permanent housing, or interim housing or street outreach interventions that 

include clear pathways to connect people to permanent housing options. HHAP Round 5 is a $1 billion 

grant that provides local jurisdictions with flexible funding to continue efforts to improve regional and 

systems coordination to prevent and end homelessness in their communities. HHAP funding is a block 

grant/ noncompetitive allocation; an application is required to access predetermined amount of funding. 

Beginning with Round 4, only 50% of the funds are available; the additional 50% will be released upon 

successful draw down of initial disbursement. HHAP funds should be housing-focused, either funding 

permanent housing interventions directly and have clear pathways to connect people to permanent 

housing.  

Key items to consider:  

➢ Funding will be released in phases: 

o Initial Disbursement (50% allocation)-$3,438,898.60 

o Remainder Disbursement will be released once initial disbursement is fully expended 

➢ YOUTH SET ASIDE Health and Safety Code section 50218.6(e) requires that a program recipient 

use at least 10 percent of its allocation for services for homeless youth populations, which are 

defined as unaccompanied youth who are between 12 and 24 years old and experiencing 

homelessness.  

➢ State approved funding amounts pre-determined by HHAP 5 application  

DISCUSSION: 

HHAP funding was awarded to the local CoC. The total combined funding made available to the Ventura 

County Continuum of Care, County of Ventura Administrative Entity is $6.877 million.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Local funding priorities previously approved by the VC CoC Board: 

Activity Type Approved Amount Youth Set-aside Approved Amount 

(inclusive of overall budget) 

Rapid Re-Housing $500,000 $100,000 

Prevention and Shelter Diversion $2,500,000 $58,000 

Delivery of Permanent Housing $2,500,000 $340,000 

Operating Subsidies for 

Permanent Housing 

$500,000 $0.00 

Interim Sheltering $250,000 $150,000 

System Supports $87,000 (Planning 

dollars) 

$40,000 

HMIS (HMIS lead only) $60,000 $0.00 

Total: $6,877,797.20 $688,000 

 

Proposed Local Timeline for HHAP-5 funding: 

Activity Deadline 

VC CoC Board to authorize staff to release requests for proposals November 14, 2024 

Requests for Proposals due December 6, 2024 

VC CoC Data Performance and Evaluation Committee Meeting - RFP 
Recommendation Process 

December 18, 2024 

VC CoC Staff present HHAP 5 recommendations to CoC Board January 8, 2025 

VC CoC staff issue HHAP 5 contracts February 2025 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

1. Approve the Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program Round 5 Timeline; 
and   

2. Authorize VC CoC staff to release a Request for Proposals on November 14, 2024 with a due 
date of December 6, 2024. 
 

Exhibit A: State of California Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention (HHAP) 5 Grant 

Request for Proposals and Application Guide 

Exhibit B:  State of California Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) 5 Grant 

Application 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

CALIFORNIA 

HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE & PREVENTION 

PROGRAM 

(HHAP ROUND 5) 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS and APPLICATION GUIDE  

 

November 14, 2025 
 
 

Completed Applications Must Be Submitted to:  

Alicia Morales-McKinney, MANAGEMENT ANALYST  

via the link provided: https://www.venturacoc.org/document-submission-form/  

COUNTY OF VENTURA  

CEO - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

800 SOUTH VICTORIA AVENUE, VENTURA, CA 93009  

 

DUE NO LATER THAN December 6, 2024, AT 2:00PM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.venturacoc.org/document-submission-form/


 

 

1. INTRODUCTION: 

The County of Ventura’s County Executive Office is accepting State of California Homeless Housing, 
Assistance & Prevention Program (HHAP) Round 5 applications in partnership with the Ventura County 
Continuum of Care (VCCoC). The fifth Round of HHAP Program is a $1 Billon block grant program designed 
to provide direct assistance to the 13 largest California cities, counties, and Continuums of Care (CoCs) to 
address the homelessness crisis throughout California. HHAP-5 is a $1 billion grant program authorized by 
Section 17 of AB 129 (Chapter 40, Statutes of 2023; Health & Safety Code (HSC) § 50230, et seq.), which 
was signed into law by Governor Gavin Newsom on July 10, 2023. Pursuant to HSC section 50231, it is the 
intent of the Legislature to transfer the HHAP grant administration work of Cal ICH to the Department of 
Housing and Community Development (HCD) during FY 23-24.  
 
HHAP funding will be administered by the County Executive Office (Administrative Entity) on behalf of the 
Ventura County Continuum of Care. All funding decisions will be made through the VCCoC process starting 
with the CoC Data, Performance & Review Committee with recommendations formulated for the VCCoC 
Board for their approval to be sent to the County of Ventura Board of Supervisors for their final 
endorsement. The County of Ventura has redirected its allocation to be combined with the VCCoC to 
support regional collaboration and joint funding determinations. 
 
$6,877,797.20 million dollars in funding will be available for the CoC/County to fund projects serving 
individuals and families who are experiencing literal homelessness or at-risk of homelessness to move into 
safe, stable housing with a particular focus on rehousing individuals in Project Roomkey sites.  
 
A minimum of 10% of funding ($688,000) will be dedicated to projects serving homeless youth or youth 
at risk of homelessness (unaccompanied youth up to age 24) Health and Safety Code section 50218.6(e). 
Applications will be accepted for stand-alone youth programs or programs that include a plan to serve 
youth. Up to seven (7) percent of funding will be retained by the County Executive Office for serving as 
the grant administrator of the program Health and Safety Code section 50220.7(f). Per HSC section 
50234(a)(1), no more than one percent of HHAP-5 funding shall be available and retained by the County 
Executive Office to support system improvements for purposes to identify a new HMIS vendor. 
 
Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate collaboration and coordination among existing programs and 
services as the goal of HHAP funding is to enhance and build capacity within the existing service system. 
Projects proposed should be supported by the jurisdiction(s) in which they plan to operate. Proposals must 
be for new or expanded capacity projects or projects that can show evidence of an expiring funding source. 
All project proposals should meet a priority need identified by the Ventura County Continuum of Care and 
plan to address the immediate homeless crisis within the proposed jurisdiction. Projects should be aligned 
with the VC CoC Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness and the VC CoC Written Standards for delivery of 
homeless assistance. Applicants should include in their proposal how they plan to sustain programs 
beyond the one-time HHAP program funding. Proposals must have a plan to meet the expenditure 
deadlines of April 30, 2028. 

 
Per Health and Safety Code Section 50218.6, et seq., HHAP funding shall be used for programs aligned 
with evidenced-based practices in ending homelessness for all populations. Best practices including but 
are not limited to: Housing First/low barrier programs, Trauma-Informed Care, Harm Reduction. All 

https://s33020.pcdn.co/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Final_VC_Homelessness_Plan_1.9.19-1.pdf
https://s33020.pcdn.co/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/VC-CoC-Policies-and-Procedures_Updated-2020.pdf


 

 

California state-funded programs must include a Housing First approach as detailed in AB 129 and per 
Health and Safety Code Section 50220.5(g) and delivered in a low barrier, Trauma-Informed and culturally 
sensitive manner.  
 
Programs aligned with a Housing First approach operate with the understanding that persons experiencing 
homelessness must have access to a safe place to live, that does not limit length of stay before stabilizing 
or improving health, reducing harmful behaviors, or increasing income. Under Housing First, an individual 
or family should be assisted in identifying housing and moved into a permanent home as quickly as possible. 
Programs should remove barriers to housing such as requirements of sobriety or absence of criminal history. 
Housing First values choices not only in where to live but whether to participate in services. In other words, tenants 
are not required to participate or enroll in services to obtain or retain housing. Proposals should detail how they 
will align their service delivery with the Housing First approach while assisting program participants with obtaining 
and maintaining housing. 
 
Per Assembly Bill (AB) 977, HHAP funded programs must receive referrals through the VC CoC Coordinated Entry 
system (CES) and utilize the Ventura County Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) to collect and enter 
client-level data. Applicants who are not current participating agencies in CES or HMIS will need to work with CoC and 
HMIS staff to get programs set up if funded. Reports will be submitted to CoC staff quarterly and annually to assess 
program performance and timeliness of spending. Reports on HHAP funded programs will be sent to the State of 
California for participation in the state’s Homeless Data Integration System (HDIS). 
 
Applicants must demonstrate commitment and action to ensuring equitable provision of services for Black, Native, 
and Indigenous, Latinx, Pacific Islanders and other People of Color who are disproportionately impacted by 
homelessness and COVID-19. 
 
Applicants should demonstrate methods for incorporating persons with lived experience of homelessness into 
their programs through meaningful participation in developing policies and program implementation including 
hiring of staff with lived experience. 
 
OBJECTIVES, ELIGIBLE USES & FUNDING AVAILABILITY: 
The Ventura County CoC and County of Ventura have identified priorities for funding in its Ventura County Plan to 
Prevent and End Homelessness. Priorities for HHAP 5 funds were established through stakeholder input and 
alignment with the Ventura County Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness. The Continuum of Care Board approved 
the adopted priorities on December 8, 2023. Eligible HHAP Round 5 uses align with local priorities include those 
listed on the following page. Priority needs include assisting with the transition of Project Roomkey (seniors and 
medically vulnerable persons) into permanent housing placements. More information on each priority may be 
found in Attachment A of this RFP. 
 
A single application must be submitted for each eligible use, (combined applications will not be accepted) for which 
an applicant is seeking funding. HHAP funding requires that a minimum of 10% of the funding be utilized to serve 
unaccompanied homeless youth between the ages of 12-24. Applications wishing to be considered for this youth-
set aside must indicate youth among the populations to be served and include in their narratives how their program 
will meet the unique needs of youth experiencing homelessness.  The youth set aside may be its own standalone 
application, however, may be combined with activities intended to serve adults that are eligible to apply. Eg: Delivery 



 

 

of PH, Rapid Re-housing, Homeless Prevention  may include a youth set aside in the application. Activities with $0.00 
and noted as “Not Available to apply” is only open to a youth provider. 
 
Staff costs to administer the program should be classified as program costs rather than administrative costs for 
state funding.  HHAP funds cannot be used to supplant or replace existing funding. 
 
Consistent with Rounds 3 and 4, HHAP-5 grantees must use at least 10 percent of their allocation for 
services for homeless youth. (HSC § 50234(e).) Homeless youth is defined as unaccompanied youth 
between ages 12 and 24-years old experiencing homelessness, including pregnant and parenting youth. 
(HSC § 50216(l).) Dollars spent under the Youth Set Aside have the same eligible uses as those described 
in this table above. Therefore, eligible uses follow the same logic described below and should be 
categorized as part of the youth set aside when costs support services and housing interventions for 
homeless youth populations. Given the continued focus and priority in allocating resources in support of 
Homeless Youth, the restriction on new interim housing solutions does not apply to the ten percent youth 
set aside. Funding utilized in excess of the ten percent set aside will be subject to the restriction on new 
interim housing solutions provided in HSC section 50236(c) and further described in paragraph C4 below: 
HHAP-5 Eligible Use Changes – Limitations on New Interim Housing Solutions. 
 
Eligible activities and State approved funding amounts are reflected in the chart below.  With the TOP FOUR 
funding priorities listed.  
 
 

1. ☐  Delivery of Permanent Housing 
(Priority)              

☐  This application includes Youth Set 

aside     

6. ☐ Operating Subsidies Interim Housing 

(existing shelters only/ youth only eligible) 

☐  This application includes Youth Set aside     

2. ☐  Operational Subsidies- Permanent 
Housing (Priority) 

☐  This application includes Youth Set 

aside     

7. ☐ Youth Services Coordination (Youth Provider 

only) 

3. ☐ Prevention and Shelter Diversion 
(Priority) 

☐  This application includes Youth Set 

aside     

8. ☐ Youth Systems Support (Youth Provider 

only) 

4. ☐ Rapid Re-Housing (Priority) 

☐  This application includes Youth Set 

aside     

9. ☐ Youth Street Outreach (Youth Provider only) 

10. ☐ HMIS Administration (HMIS Administration eligible only) 

 

 
Eligible Activities 

Funding 
Available 

Notes: 

1.  Delivery of Permanent Housing 

and Innovative Solutions  

$2,500,000 Eligible to apply 



 

 

 

Delivery of permanent housing: youth set-
aside 

$340,000  Although the proposed 
budget is capped at 
$340,000, a Youth Set A-side 
provider may exceed this 
request for funds solely for 
youth. 

2. Priority Operational Subsidies-Permanent 

Housing  

$500,000 Eligible to apply 

 

Operational Subsidies permanent Housing: 
youth set-aside 

$0.00  Although the proposed 
budget is capped at $0.00, a 
Youth Set A-side provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds solely for youth. 

3. Priority Prevention and Shelter Diversion  $2,500,000 Eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 Prevention and shelter 
diversion: youth set-aside 

$58,000  Although the proposed 
budget is capped at $58,000, 
a Youth Set A-side provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds solely for youth. 

4. Priority Rapid Re-Housing  $500,000 Eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 Rapid Re-Housing: youth set-
aside  

$100,000  Although the proposed 
budget is capped at 
$1000,000, a Youth Set A-
side provider may exceed this 
request for funds solely for 
youth. 

5.  Operating Subsidies Interim 

Housing  

$0.00 Not eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 Operating Subsidies Interim 
housing: youth set-aside 

$0.00 Although the proposed 
budget is capped at $0.00, a 
Youth Set A-side provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds solely for youth. 

6.  Interim Sheltering (existing 

shelters only) 

$250,000 Eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 Interim Sheltering (existing 
shelters only): youth set-aside 

$150,000 Although the proposed 
budget is capped at 
$150,000, a YSA provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds but no more than the 
10% of the total HHAP 5 YSA. 



 

 

7.  Improvements to Existing 
Emergency Shelter 

$0.00 Not eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 Improvements to Existing 
Emergency Shelter: youth set-aside 

$0.00  Although the proposed 
budget is capped at $0.00, a 
Youth Set A-side provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds solely for youth. 

8.  Services Coordination $0.00 Not eligible to apply 

 

Youth Services Coordination: youth set-
aside 

$0.00 Although the proposed 
budget is capped at $0.00, a 
Youth Set A-side provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds solely for youth. 

9.  Systems Support (CoC Planning 

dollars) * 

$0.00 Not eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 CES Systems support (Planning 
dollars): youth set-aside 

$40,000 Although the proposed 
budget is capped at $40,000, 
a Youth Set A-side provider 
may exceed this request for 
funds solely for youth. 

10.  Street Outreach $0.00 Not eligible to apply 

 

Youth 18-24 Street Outreach: youth 

set-aside 

$0.00 Although the proposed budget 

is capped at $0.00, a Youth Set 

A-side provider may exceed this 

request for funds solely for 

youth. 

11.  

Additional HMIS Administration 

$60,000 Funds available to HMIS 

Administration only.  Direct 

service providers are deemed 

ineligible to apply per statue. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Eligible Activities Defined 
Costs that Support Permanent Housing 

 

Delivery of 

Permanent 

Housing 

and 

Innovative 

Solutions 

(CoC/Cal 

ICH/HCD 

Priority):  

 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support the provision of permanent housing.

   
Examples:  
• Acquisition of land, building, etc.  
• Improvement or renovation of land or building being used as permanent housing.  
• Maintenance of land or building being used as permanent housing.  
• Services for people in permanent housing programs, so long as the services are trauma-
informed and practice harm reduction, to include intensive case management services, assertive 
community treatment services, critical time intervention services, other tenancy support services, 
evidence-based employment services, coordinating mental health, substance use, and primary 
care treatment, or other evidence-based supportive services to increase housing retention.  

Rapid 

Rehousing 
(CoC/Cal 
ICH/HCD 
Priority): 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when the costs 
support operating a rapid rehousing type housing service. 
This means a tenant-based, time limited, permanent housing program, inclusive of wrap-around 
services with preferences for older adults 60+ and Unaccompanied youth (18-24). 
 
Funding may support direct financial assistance to those who are category 1: literally homeless or 
Category 4: Fleeing DV, stalking, etc., including Unaccompanied Youth 
 
• Rental subsidies, including to support placement of individuals in CARE Court. 
• Landlord incentives, such as security deposits, holding fees, funding for needed repairs, and 
recruitment and relationship management costs. 
• Move-in expenses. 
Services for people in rapid rehousing programs, so long as the services are trauma-informed and 
practice harm reduction, to include intensive case management services, assertive community 
treatment services, critical time intervention services, other tenancy support services, evidence-
based employment services, coordinating mental health, substance use, and primary care 
treatment, or other evidence-based supportive services to increase housing retention. 

o Funding may support Rental subsidies, landlord incentives, such as security deposits, 
holding fees, funding for needed repairs, and recruitment and relationship 
management costs, and move-in expenses as an overall housing scope.  

o Flexible rental subsidies in Rapid Re-Housing Programs for vulnerable individuals 
 and households that may be medium or long term in nature paired with 
 voluntary supportive services.  

o Funding may support Utility bills - eligible under “rental assistance/rapid rehousing” 
o Funds can be used to purchase furniture and household furnishing to the extent that 

the purchase of these items will enable a project to establish a participant in housing 
or improve their stability in housing to meet habitability standards. 



 

 

Prevention 
and 
Shelter 
Diversion 
(CoC/Cal 
ICH/ HCD 
Priority): 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support eligible populations access safe 
alternatives to shelter and/or remain safely housed at their current residence. Problem-solving 
and diversion support programs that prevent people at risk of or recently experiencing 
homelessness from entering unsheltered or sheltered homelessness. With preferences for older 
adults and unaccompanied youth (18-24). 
 
Funding may support direct financial assistance to those who are at risk of homelessness or 
imminent risk, Category 4: Fleeing DV, stalking, etc., including Unaccompanied youth. 
 
• Homelessness prevention through rental assistance 

• Funding may support landlord incentives, such as security deposits, holding fees, and 

move-in expenses, 

• Funding may support direct financial assistance with dedicated staffing resources by 

providing, problem-solving and diversion support programs that prevent people at 

risk of or recently experiencing homelessness from entering, unsheltered or sheltered 

homelessness,  

• Funding may support up to 2 months of rental arrears  

• Funding may include medical bills –if it allows the individual to obtain or sustain 

housing 

HHAP 5 Changes:  
• Change of eligible population to include “at risk of homelessness.”  

• • Requires prioritization of households with incomes at or below 30 percent of the 

area median income, who pay more than 50 percent of their income in housing costs, 

and who meet criteria for being at highest risk of homelessness through data-

informed criteria.  

 



 

 

 

Costs that Support Interim Housing 

Operating 

Subsidies 

Permanent 

Housing 

(CoC/Cal 

ICH/HCD 

Priority):  

 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support operations in new and existing 
affordable or supportive housing units serving people experiencing homelessness.  
 
Operating subsidies may include operating reserves (funds held in reserve to cover large, 
unexpected operating expenses).  
 
Examples: 
• Operating costs for programs such as Homekey, prioritizing Project Roomkey participants  
 • Operating costs for new or existing residential care facilities, funded by the Behavioral Health 
Continuum Infrastructure Program or the Community Care Expansion Program.  
• Property tax abatements for both affordable ownership and rental properties that have a 
similar effect, helping to defray the costs of operating the development so residents can pay 
lower rents. 
• Subsidies support ongoing operation and availability of permanent housing and/or assisting in 
management of a building’s facilities that can help stabilize or reduce structural decline and serve 
an important role in broader market stabilization efforts 

Youth 

Operating 

Subsidies 

Interim 

Housing 

(Youth 

providers may 

apply ONLY) 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support operations in interim housing 
serving people experiencing homelessness. Operating subsidies may include operating 
reserves (funds held in reserve to cover large, unexpected operating expenses).  

• 100% funding dedicated to serve Youth 18-24 

Examples: 
 • Subsidies that support ongoing operation and availability of existing interim housing (both 
congregate and non-congregate).  

Interim 

Housing 

 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support the provision of interim housing.  
 
Examples:  
• Acquisition of land, building, etc.  
• Improvement or renovation of land or building being used as interim housing.  
• Maintenance of land or building being used as interim housing. 
 • Navigation centers that are low barrier, as defined in Sections 65660 and 65662 of the 
Government Code.  
• Motel or hotel vouchers.  
• Services provided to people in interim housing, to include trauma-informed and evidence-
based intensive case management services, housing navigation, connecting people to 
substance use or mental health treatment, public benefits advocacy, and other supportive 
services to promote stability and referral into permanent housing. 
 • Youth-focused services in interim housing. 



 

 

 

Costs that Support Service Provision and Systems Support 

 • YOUTH ONLY: Capital funding to build new non-congregate interim housing sites, including 
for construction, rehabilitation, and capital improvements to convert existing buildings to 
interim housing.  
 
HHAP-5 Changes: • No HHAP-5 resources may be used to fund new interim housing solutions, 
until both of the following occurs: (1) the applicant has demonstrated that the region has 
dedicated sufficient resources from other sources to long-term permanent housing solutions 
and (2) the applicant has received written permission from Cal ICH. (HSC §50236(c).) 
 • This limitation does not apply to new interim housing solutions for youth under the ten 
percent youth set aside. 

Youth 

Improvements 

to Existing 

Interim 

Housing 

(Youth 

providers may 

apply ONLY) 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support renovation of existing interim 
housing to improve the quality of the life for people experiencing homelessness who are 
residing in the interim housing.  

• 100% funding dedicated to serve Youth 18-24 

Examples:  
• Maintenance of an interim housing facility 
Minor/major rehabilitation or renovation of an interim housing facility.  
• Minor/major conversion, additions, updates, and/or enhancements that lower barriers 
and/or increase privacy. 
  
 

Youth Street 

Outreach 

(Youth 

providers 

may apply 

ONLY) 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support Outreach programs. 

• 100% funding dedicated to serve Youth 18-24 

Examples:  
• Services for people experiencing unsheltered homelessness, including, but not limited to, 
persons experiencing homelessness living in encampment sites and being engaged through the 
Encampment Resolution Grant program to help them transition to permanent housing with 
services attached.  
• Evidence-based Street engagement services.  
• Intensive case management services.  
• Assertive community treatment. 
 • Housing navigation.  
• Harm reduction services.  
• Coordination with street-based health care services. 
 • Hygiene services for unsheltered individuals and people living in encampments.   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Youth 

Services 

Coordination 

(Youth 

providers 

may apply 

ONLY) 

 
Eligible Uses should be categorized here when costs support wrap-around services not directly 
provided through another project.  

• 100% funding dedicated to serve Youth 18-24 

Examples:  

• Access to workforce,  

• Access to legal/advocacy services, 

• Individual counseling and service planning, 

• Helping to coordinate medical and mental health appointments, obtaining benefits and 
medical insurance, 

• Making referrals to community-based services,  

• Training programs,  

• Case management, 

• Childcare, 

• Access to education services, 

• Outpatient health services, 

• Legal services, 

• Life skills training, 

• Mental health services, 

• Substance abuse treatment services, 

• Transportation, 

• Vehicle repair/maintenance –if it allows the individual to travel for employment or other 

important benefits or services,  

• Services for special populations 

• Other services needed to promote housing stability in supportive housing, application must 

specify. 

 

Youth 

System 

Supports 

(Youth 

providers 

may apply 

ONLY) 

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when the cost supports homelessness services system 
infrastructure, regional coordination, and/or improves accessibility and outcomes generally, as 
opposed to specific client(s).  

• 100% funding dedicated to serve Youth 18-24 

Examples:  

• Support youth services by integrating regional data into housing needs 

• Support implementation and regional coordination of a Youth Action Board  

 
 



 

 

 

Costs that Support Administrative Costs 

 

3. COORDINATED ENTRY SYSTEM (CES): 

Per Assembly Bill 977, successful applicants for all program types will receive all referrals through the 

Ventura County Coordinated Entry System (CES), Pathways to Home. Applicants seeking funding for 

landlord incentives will coordinate efforts to support housing persons through the CES. Coordinated 

Entry is a process designed to quickly identify, assess, refer, and connect individuals, youth including 

pregnant and parenting youth, and families in crisis to housing and services. Coordinated Entry is 

intended to prioritize resources for those with the greatest need, match people with the services that 

are most likely to help them exit homelessness, reduce the time it takes for participants to access 

services and ensure that those resources are efficiently allocated. Per Health and Safety Code Section 

50219(a)(9), HHAP applicants must be integrated into the local CES. 

 

“Coordinated Entry System” means a centralized or coordinated process developed pursuant to Section 

57837 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), as that section read on January 10, 2019, designed 

to coordinate homelessness program intake, assessment, and provision of referrals. To satisfy this 

subdivision, a centralized or coordinated assessment system shall cover the geographic area, be easily 

accessed by individuals or families seeking services, be well advertised and include a comprehensive and 

standardized assessment tool. 

 

The Oxnard, San Buenaventura, Ventura County CoC (CA-611) implemented CES, Pathways to Home in 

October 2016. A hallmark of the CES is prioritizing vulnerable individuals and families for services and 

housing. The focus on serving the most vulnerable households may result in a reduction of total 

households served under this funding. To learn more about the Ventura County CES, Click Pathways to 

Home. 

 

 

HMIS (Funds 

available to 

HMIS 

Administrati

on only).   

Eligible Uses should be categorized here when the eligible applicant elects to allocate (up to) 

1% of the HHAP-5 allocation to cover expenses associated with the administration of HMIS.  

 

This funding shall be transferred directly to the HMIS lead entity and is intended to support the 

functioning, maintenance, and operation of the local HMIS.  

Examples:  

• System licenses  

• Training  

• System operating costs  

• Costs associated with carrying out related activities, application must specify. 

 

https://www.venturacoc.org/pathways-to-home/
https://www.venturacoc.org/pathways-to-home/


 

 

4. HOMELESS MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM (HMIS): 
Per Assembly Bill 977, all applicants receiving HHAP funds must participate in the Ventura County 

Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). This system requires data collection and 

reporting. The Ventura County Continuum of Care operates a HMIS that operates with limited data 

sharing—referred to as an open HMIS. Program participants sign a release of information and consent to 

providing universal data elements within the HMIS. HMIS participating agencies may view this limited data 

when this data is entered by any participating agency. To learn more about HMIS requirements, please 

click to view Ventura County HMIS. In addition to the standard intake and data standards, HHAP recipients 

will be asked to enter services in HMIS. Please include adequate staff time for accurate and timely data 

entry into your HHAP budget. 

 
5. GRANT TERMS: 

The anticipated grant term is for 48 months with an estimated start date of Early Fall 2024 through April 30, 2028. 

All funds must be fully expended by April 30, 2028. The budget submitted by the applicant should indicate the 

specific funding that will be used in each year of the program’s operation while utilizing HHAP Round 5 funding. A 

single application should be submitted for each eligible activity for which an applicant is seeking HHAP Round 5 

funding.  

 

The CoC will monitor spending rates and will redistribute funds if a project is not on track to utilize all funds on 

eligible activities prior to the State expenditure deadline. Per Health and Safety Code 50220.4 (b), recipients must 

expend 50% of their allocation by June 30, 2026 (no exceptions) and fully expend the remaining 50% by April 30, 

2028. Eligible costs will be invoiced to County on at least a monthly basis for reimbursement by the 10th of each 

month. No matching funds are required for HHAP. Recipients must begin their project within 45-60 days of the 

signed contractual agreement and created in HMIS/CES.  

 
6. PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS: 

Homeless, Housing Assistance & Prevention Program (HHAP) Requirements: 

The use of HHAP funds is governed by policies set by the California Interagency Council on Homelessness 

(Cal ICH) and Assembly Bill (AB) 129. To learn more about the State HHAP Program, access the State of 

California HHAP page. 

 
Eligible Applicants: 
Eligible applicants for HHAP funding include cities, county agencies and nonprofit organizations. 

Applicants will be able to include sub-recipients in a collaborative application to maximize effectiveness 

in addressing homelessness. Sub-recipients must comply with the same program requirements of direct 

applicants.   

Eligible applicants include: 

1. Those who are currently funded under HHAP I CoC/County and HHAP II and have 

expended minimum 75% of HHAP I County and 75% of HHAP I CoC and 60% of HHAP 

2 by March 31, 2024.  

2. A Letter of Intent to apply for HHAP Round 5 was successfully submitted on or before 

November 17, 2023. 

https://www.venturacoc.org/homeless-management-information-system-hmis/
https://bcsh.ca.gov/calich/hhap_program.html
https://bcsh.ca.gov/calich/hhap_program.html


 

 

3. Letter of Intent Exceptions: If an agency did not submit an LOI, please provide a Cover 

Letter on Agency Letter Head providing compelling justification as to why a Letter of 

Intent was not submitted.  The Cover Letter must be signed and dated by the Agencies 

Authorized Signatory. Justifications will be reviewed by the Data Performance and 

Evaluation Committee.  

4. Youth Set-a-Side: To meet the required 10% Youth set aside per the State of California, 

Providers may submit a Request for Funds regardless of item #1 and item #2. 

 
Eligible Populations: 

The minimum eligibility criteria for HHAP participants is to meet the homeless definition cited in 24 CFR 

578.3. 

• “Homeless” has the same meaning as defined in Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, as that section read on January 10, 2019. 

• “Homeless youth” means an unaccompanied youth between 12 and 24 years of age who is 

experiencing homelessness, as defined in Section 725(2) of the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless 

Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 11434a(2)). “Homeless youth” includes unaccompanied youth who 

are pregnant or parenting. 

• HHAP-5 statute modifies the eligible population to also include people at risk of experiencing 

homelessness so long as households with incomes at or below 30 percent of the area median 

income, who pay more than 50 percent of their income in housing costs, and who meet criteria 

for being at highest risk of homelessness through data-informed criteria are prioritized. Consistent 

with HHAP-3 and HHAP-4, those who are at imminent risk of homelessness, as defined in Section 

578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations are still eligible for prevention and shelter 

diversion services. 

Eligible Costs: 
The VC CoC and County as the CoC’s Administrative Entity are using the federal regulations below to provide 
applicants with guidelines for eligible costs. Eligible costs are described by component type and may be 
impacted be CoC Written Standards. If a cost is not described as an eligible expense but is part of assisting 
households experiencing homelessness obtain and maintain permanent housing and aligned with California’s 
Housing First Policy, applicants must receive express written consent from CoC staff prior to use of program 
funds. 
 

Component Type Regulation 

Housing Location/ Stabilization Services 24 CFR 576.105 

Rental Assistance 

24 CFR 576.106  

Housing Search and Placement 24 CFR 982.301(a) 

Emergency Shelter 

24 CFR 576.102 & HSC 5081 (e) 

Permanent Supportive Housing 24 CFR 583 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title24-vol3/xml/CFR-2017-title24-vol3-part578.xml#seqnum578.3
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title24-vol3/xml/CFR-2017-title24-vol3-part578.xml#seqnum578.3


 

 

 

HHAP requires a minimum of 10% ($688,000) of funding to be utilized for serving homeless youth, which is defined 

as unaccompanied youth ages 12-24 who are experiencing homelessness. This requirement will impact the 

prioritization of application(s) made by providers of services to homeless youth or youth at-risk of experiencing 

homelessness. 

 

Indirect costs associated with carrying out program related activities should be included in the program budget 

submitted and not classified as administrative costs. Indirect costs must be approved by VC CoC HHAP 

Administrator.  Per California Business Consumer Services, there is a 10% Indirect Cost Cap. 

 

As HHAP does not restrict funds to Fair Market Rent standards, Rent Reasonableness will be the standard for rent 

payments. Security deposits up to two (2) months of rent are allowed. Rent sustainability and length of assistance 

should be factored when assisting clients with securing a rental unit. HHAP funding does allow for flexible rental 

subsidies with longer terms of assistance. 

 
California’s Housing First Policy –Core Practices and Components: 

Housing First is a proven approach, applicable among all elements of systems for ending homelessness, in which 

persons experiencing homelessness are connected to permanent housing swiftly and with few to none treatment 

preconditions, behavioral contingencies or other barriers. Housing First providers offer services as needed and do 

not make housing contingent upon the participation in services (e.g., sobriety, engagement in treatment, service 

participation requirements). 

 

Additionally, HSC section 50234(f) requires all state funded programs providing housing or housing-based services 

to people experiencing homelessness to incorporate the core components of Housing First as enumerated in 

Welfare and Institutions Code 8255. 

 

All projects including services must align with the Core Practices described in CCR Title 25, 8409(b).  

Projects shall operate in a manner consistent with Housing First practices as reflected in the CoC Written 

Standards, consistent with subsections below, and progressive engagement and assistance practices, 

including the following: Ensuring low-barrier, trauma informed, culturally responsive, easily accessible 

assistance to all people, including, but not limited to, people with no income or income history, and people 

with active substance abuse or mental health issues; Helping participants quickly identify and resolve 

barriers to obtaining and maintaining housing; seeking to quickly resolve the housing crisis before focusing 

on other non-housing related services; allowing participants to choose the services and housing that 

meets their needs, within practical and funding limitations; connecting participants to appropriate support 

and services available in the community that foster long-term housing stability; offering financial 

assistance and supportive services in a manner which offers a minimum amount of assistance initially, 

adding more assistance over time if needed to quickly resolve the housing crisis by either ending 

homelessness, or avoiding an immediate return to literal homelessness or the imminent risk of literal 

homelessness. In addition, individuals and families assisted with these funds must not be required to 

receive treatment or perform any other prerequisite activities as a condition for receiving interim or 

permanent housing, or other services for which these funds are used. Housing First should be adopted 



 

 

within the entire local homelessness response system, including outreach and interim housing, short-term 

interventions like rapid re-housing, and longer-term interventions like supportive housing. 

 

The type, duration, and amount of assistance offered shall be based on an individual assessment of the household, 

and the availability of other resources or support systems to resolve their housing crisis and stabilize them in housing. 
 

Proposed activities that provide housing must align with the Core Components of Housing First. 

Welfare and Institutions Code Division 8. Chapter 6.5 8255 (b) “Core components of Housing First” means 

all the following: 

• Tenant screening and selection practices that promote accepting applicants regardless of their 

sobriety or use of substances, completion of treatment, or participation in services. 

• Applicants are not rejected on the basis of poor credit or financial history, poor or lack of rental 

history, criminal convictions unrelated to tenancy, or behaviors that indicate a lack of “housing 

readiness.” 

• Acceptance of referrals directly from shelters, street outreach, drop-in centers, and other parts of 

crisis response systems frequented by vulnerable people experiencing homelessness. 

• Supportive services that emphasize engagement and problem solving over therapeutic goals and 

service plans that are highly tenant-driven without predetermined goals. 

• Participation in services or program compliance is not a condition of permanent housing tenancy. 

• Tenants have a lease and all the rights and responsibilities of tenancy, as outlined in California’s 

Civil, Health and Safety, and Government codes. 

• The use of alcohol or drugs in and of itself, without other lease violations, is not a reason for eviction. 

• In communities with coordinated assessment and entry systems, incentives for funding promote 

tenant selection plans for supportive housing that prioritize eligible tenants based on criteria other than 

“first-come-first-serve,” including, but not limited to, the duration or chronicity of homelessness, 

vulnerability to early mortality, or high utilization of crisis services. Prioritization may include triage tools, 

developed through local data, to identify high-cost, high-need homeless residents 

• Case managers and service coordinators who are trained in and actively employ evidence-based 

practices for client engagement, including, but not limited to, motivational interviewing and client-

centered counseling. 

• Services are informed by a harm-reduction philosophy that recognizes drug and alcohol use and 

addiction as a part of tenants’ lives, where tenants are engaged in nonjudgmental communication 

regarding drug and alcohol use, and where tenants are offered education regarding how to avoid risky 

behaviors and engage in safer practices, as well as connected to evidence-based treatment if the 

tenant so chooses. 

• The project and specific apartment may include special physical features that accommodate disabilities, 

reduce harm, and promote health and community and independence among tenants. 

 
 



 

 

Written Standards 
The CoC has established Written Standards for providing service. All selected applicants must abide by 
the CoC written standards, can be found here. 
 
CoC Participation 

All recipients of HHAP funding are to become members of the CoC. The membership commitment may 

include, but is not limited to participation in the following: 

• Attending CoC meetings, 

• Reporting to/seeking input from constituencies on key issues and strategies, 

• Remaining informed of and communicating needs and gaps, 

• Remaining informed of local, state, federal, and private proposals for funding, 

• Contributing to informed dialogue on action undertaken by the group, 

• Serving on a CoC Standing Committee, 

• Participating in administration of the annual Point in Time (PIT) Count, 

• Sharing aggregate outcome and performance data on the successes and challenges of people who 

are experiencing or have experienced homelessness, 

• Engaging in the regular review of data to ensure that high levels of data quality and completeness 

are maintained, 

• Providing input in the development of strategies and action plans to reduce and end 

homelessness, 

• Participating in advocacy and public education efforts. 

 

7. METHOD OF EVALUATION: 

Staff Threshold Review 

Applications will be evaluated by CoC Staff for the following criteria: 

• Basic review for completeness and capacity, 

• Proposal aligns with HHAP eligible uses and established CoC/County/Cal ICH/HCD priorities for 

HHAP funds, 

• Serves persons who are homeless or at risk, fleeing DV, 

• Alignment with California Housing First requirements, 

• Participation (or commitment to participate) in VC HMIS, 

• Participation (or commitment to participate) in Coordinated Entry System, Pathways to Home. 

 

CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation Committee Review 
Applications will be evaluated by the CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation Committee based on the criteria 
below: 

https://www.venturacoc.org/coc-documents/


 

 

• Demonstration of capacity to fulfill grant requirements (experience with state/federal grants 

including a review of previously submitted Expenditure Summary Reports for all CoC grants, 

timeliness, and quarterly reporting, 

• Project Design and Approach, 

• Financial Capacity, Feasibility and Sustainability, 

• Past performance, 

• Coordination and Collaboration. 

Applicants may be called to upon to answer questions at this committee meeting. 

The CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation Committee will develop recommendations for HHAP Round 5 funding 

allocations with consideration of geographic distribution of funding to best meet community needs. 

 

Funding recommendations will be presented to the CoC Governing Board for their review and approval. 

Committee members who are applicants will not be able to vote on HHAP recommendations. Board members 

without a conflict of interest will vote on funding recommendations to be shared with the County of Ventura 

Board of Supervisors. The meeting timeline will be posted on the Ventura CoC website. 

 

8.  APPLICATION SUBMITTAL:  

• Submit one (1) copy, including all attachments in PDF form, by clicking on the link below to 

access the submission portal: https://www.venturacoc.org/document-submission-form/ with 

the subject line stating HHAP-5 application submission and Agency Name. 

• One application should be submitted for each separate program (combined applications will not 

be accepted and deemed ineligible).  

• Narrative portions of the application may be submitted on a separate document limited to 10 

total pages. 

• Submit budget attachment including ALL current and pending funding sources/leverage funding 

supporting this application activity type. Round all dollar amounts to the nearest dollar (i.e., 

$4.59 should be rounded to $5 and $4.25 should be rounded to $4). 

• All applications will be reviewed for completeness. All or a portion of the application can be 

denied for the following reasons: 

 a. The application is incomplete and the CoC staff is unable to reasonably determine what the 

applicant is proposing or whether the application meets threshold requirements. 

b. The application does not pass the HHAP or VC CoC Program threshold, such as, if the applicant 
or proposed activities are not eligible or programs that are not aligned with evidence-based 
practices including Housing First. 
c. Previous HHAP Rounds not on track to being fully expended: 

I. HHAP 1- County and CoC 75% expended by November 1, 2024  

II. HHAP 2- 60% expended as of November 1, 2024  

III. HHAP-3- 60% expended as of November 1, 2024 

IV. HHAP-4- 25% expended as of November 1, 2024 

https://www.venturacoc.org/
https://www.venturacoc.org/document-submission-form/


 

 

i. This does not apply to youth set a side providers. 

• Late submissions will not be considered for HHAP funding, no exceptions.  

• LOI Exception letter was not submitted and/or did not provide compelling justification. 

Required Attachments for Nonprofit Organizations:  

• Articles of Incorporation/By-laws, 

• Nonprofit determination letters from IRS and California Tax Franchise Board/Tax Exemption letter, 

• Organization Chart, 

• Board of Directors Roster, 

• Conflict of Interest Statement (policies and procedures, employee handbook), 

• Non-Discrimination Policy, 

• Financial Management policies & procedures 

• Letter of Intent Exception Cover Letter signed and dated by the Agencies Authorized Signatory, 

• Evidence of non-suspension/debarment for all parties, 

• Evidence of insurance, 

o Copy of current insurance coverage (General Liability, Workers Comp), 

• Most recent audited financial statements, 

• IRS form W-9, 

• IRS form 990, 

• Agency Budget or Financial Plan, 

• Blank client intake form with documentation of eligibility status including 3rd party documentation 

and self-certifications as applicable, 

• Annual Performance Report generated from VC HMIS for the same project type covering time period 

of October 1, 2023- September 30, 2024. For applicants not participating in VC HMIS, please submit 

a report generated from a comparable database, 

• Application narratives, 

• Application certification signed, 

• Staffing plan relevant to project, 

• Completed project budget workbook. 

 
Required Attachments for for-profit organizations: 

• Articles of incorporation/bylaws, 

• Organization Chart, 

• Board of Directors Roster, 

• Conflict of Interest Statement (policies and procedures, employee handbook), 

• No-Discrimination Policy, 

• Financial Management policies & procedures 

• Evidence of non-suspension/debarment from all parties, 



 

 

• Letter of Intent Exception Cover Letter signed and dated by the Agencies Authorized Signatory, 

• Evidence of insurance, 

o Copy of current insurance coverage (General Liability, Workers Comp), 

• Most recent audited financial statements, 

• IRS form W-9, 

• IRS form 990, 

• Agency Budget or Financial Plan, 

• Blank client intake form with documentation of eligibility status including 3rd party documentation 

and self-certifications as applicable, 

• Annual Performance Report generated from VC HMIS for the same project type covering time period 

of October 1, 2023-September 30, 2024. For applicants not participating in VC HMIS, please submit a 

report generated from a comparable database, 

• Application narratives, 

• Application certification signed, 

• Staffing plan relevant to project, 

• Completed project budget workbook. 

 
Required Attachments for units of local government:  

• Tax exemption if applicable to any sub-recipients 

• Conflict of Interest Statement (policies and procedures, employee handbook), 

• No-Discrimination Policy, 

• Letter of Intent Exception Cover Letter signed and dated by the Agencies Authorized Signatory, 

• Evidence of non-suspension/debarment from all parties 

• Evidence of insurance 
o Copy of current insurance coverage (General Liability, Workers Comp) 

• IRS Form W-9 (not required for County departments) 

• Blank client intake form with documentation of eligibility status including 3rd party documentation 
and self-certifications as applicable 

• Annual Performance Report generated from VC HMIS for the same project type covering time period 
of October 1, 2023-September 30, 2024. For applicants not participating in VC HMIS, please submit a 
report generated from a comparable database, 

• Application narratives 

• Application certification signed, 

• Staffing plan relevant to project, 

• Completed project budget workbook 

A. Rating Criteria: 

• Applicant Capacity (15 points) 

• Program design (20 points) 

• Financial Capacity, Feasibility & Sustainability (18 points) 



 

 

• Performance (25 points) 

• Coordination & Collaboration (12 points) 

• Funding Priorities (10 points) 

➢ Total points possible: 100 

 

 

Threshold Review & Evaluation 

Basic review for 
completeness and 
capacity  
 

• All required responses and attachments are included. Applicant 
demonstrates capacity to fulfill all program requirements, 

• Timely audited financial statements,  

• Liquidity,  

• Measurements of vulnerability (e.g., net profit margin, fundraising 
efficiency, dependency on the County or a single entity for financial 
strength),  

• Submitted by deadline, 

• Application certification signed, 

• LOI Exception Letter submitted and signed. 

 

Program eligibility: 
proposal aligns with 
HHAP eligible use(s)  
 

• See page 6-11 for Eligible HHAP uses and local priorities for HHAP 5. 

Program eligibility: 
serves homeless 
persons, those at risk 
or those at imminent 
risk of homelessness  
 

 

• Serves homeless persons or those at imminent risk of homelessness 
as defined in 24 CFR 578.3.  

 

Alignment with 
California’s Housing 
First Policy  
 

 

• The applicant has addressed the core practices for services projects 
(CCR 25 8409 b) and all core components (WIC Title Chapter 6.5 
8255 b) in California’s Housing First Policy for housing projects,  

• Alignment with California’s Housing First Policy 
o CCR Title 25, 8409(b) and/or  
o WIC Div.8, Ch. 6.5 8255(b)  

 

Homeless 
Management 
Information System 
(AB 977/ AB 129) 
 

• The applicant commits to use of HMIS, including timeliness and 
data quality standards, demonstrates adequate capacity for data 
collection and reporting.  

 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title24-vol3/xml/CFR-2017-title24-vol3-part578.xml#seqnum578.3


 

 

Coordinated Entry 
System  
 

 

• The applicant commits to participation in Coordinated Entry 
System. Street Outreach must serve as entry points. Rental 
Assistance and Rapid Rehousing, Housing Location Services 
(Landlord Incentives) and Permanent Housing must receive all 
referrals from CES.  

 
 
 
CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation Review Committee 
 

Applicant Capacity  
Max score: 15  

• Experience providing similar services and housing to homeless 
persons or other vulnerable populations for which funds are 
being requested,  

• Experience addressing the needs of the target population  

• Sufficient capacity for project oversight and administration.  
 

Project Design and 
Approach  
Max score: 20  

• Project is based on best-practices framework proven methods  

• Project approach demonstrates positive outcomes,  

• Project design reflects CoC Written Standards and ability to 
address homeless challenges,  

• Anticipated numbers served appear reasonable given the 
prioritization of vulnerable individuals and families within the 
homeless population,  

• Staffing pattern is reasonable to provide long term housing 
retention.  

 

Financial Capacity, 
Feasibility and 
Sustainability  
Max score: 18  

• Budget clearly shows use of funds and staffing pattern to sustain 
project,  

• Reasonable project costs,  

• Degree to which project leverages agency and community 
resources, 

• Outstanding and/or unresolved audit findings  

• Demonstrated capacity to operate the project based on its 
budget,  

• Demonstrated capacity to effectively manage the finances of the 
project (e.g., invoices submitted in a timely, complete manner),  

• Describes specifically how the project will continue after the 
one-time funding is exhausted, or how it will end with the least 
negative impact on participants.  

 

Past Performance  
Max score: 25  

• Provided annual performance report demonstrates a proven 
track record of permanently housing individuals and/or families 
in a similar project,  



 

 

• Data collection and reporting will allow for accurately reflected 
outcomes and performance,  

• Clearly addresses how a current/similar project enhances system 
performance by reducing the length of time persons experience 
homelessness, reduces returns to homelessness, and increases 
both cash and non-cash income of participants. 

 

Coordination and 
Collaboration  
Max score: 12  

• Preference for applicant providing services countywide (2 pts.), 

• Demonstrates coordination with other agencies and providers 
for the proposed project to enhance service delivery and avoid 
duplication,  

• Agency demonstrates history of collaboration, 

• Coordination with other agency activities and funding sources,  

• Links’ participants to mainstream resources and critical services 
not provided by the project,  

• Adequate staffing for Coordinated Entry System participation 
and case conferencing,  

• If sub-recipients, clearly show role of each agency and 
partnership.  

 

Funding Priority 
Max score: 10 

• Application submitted meets one of the Top FOUR CoC Board 
approved funding priorities. 
 

 



 

 

 

 

CALIFORNIA  

HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE & PREVENTION 

PROGRAM  

(HHAP ROUND 5) 

 

PROJECT APPLICATION 
 

NOVEMBER 14, 2024 

 
Completed Applications Must Be Submitted to: 

Alicia Morales-McKinney, MANAGEMENT ANALYST 
via RFP Submission Portal to: https://www.venturacoc.org/document-submission-form/ 

 

COUNTY OF VENTURA 
CEO - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION  

 800 SOUTH VICTORIA AVENUE, VENTURA, CA  93009 
 

NO LATER THAN  
DECEMBER 6, 2024 BY 2PM (NO EXCEPTIONS) 

 

 
 

  

https://www.venturacoc.org/document-submission-form/


VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 1 

1. APPLICANT CAPACITY & FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
Legal Name of Organization: _______________________________________________________ 

 

Is the organization a 501(c)?     ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

 

City:  _____________________________________ Zip: ______________________ 

 

Executive Director Name & Title: ___________________________________________________ 

 

Organization Contact Name & Title: _________________________________________________ 

 

 Work Phone: __________________________ Fax: _____________________________ 

  

 E-mail Address: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Organization Website Address: _____________________________________________________ 

 

Organization’s DUNS #: ____________________      Tax Payer ID #: ________________________ 

 

Fiscal Agent Contact Name & Title: __________________________________________________ 

 

 Work Phone: __________________________ Fax: _____________________________ 

  

 E-mail Address: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Years in operation: ____________ 

 

Date of most recent 990 filed: __________________ 

 

Does your organization have any outstanding financial audit findings?  ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

If yes, please explain: 

Is your organization required to file a Federal Single Audit (CFR200.501)? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

 

 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 2 

Please check off the application type you are applying for: 

 ☐ Youth Set Aside Application (12-24) ONLY 

 ☐ Adult Application ONLY   

 ☐ Adult and Youth (18-24) combined 

 (This information is intended to help determine the required 10% Youth Set aside) 

 

Does your organization comply with 2 CFR 200 Part 2400 Uniform Requirements? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 How many members are part of your Board of Directors? ____________________ 

 How often does your Board meet? ______________________________________ 

 Describe the financial expertise of your current board members:  

Has your organization received and managed State/Federal funds? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Please complete the chart below with the most recent State/Federal grant awards for your organization. 

Failure to provide grant sources may impact contracting agreements. To prevent duplication of funding, 

information is required to be disclosed at time of application   

Grant Year(s) 
Start-End Date 
or Future Date 

Funding Source 
(State, Federal, 
Local) and 
Department 
(HUD, HCD, 
etc) 

Activity Type: Street Outreach, Emergency 

Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Navigation, 
Permanent Supportive Housing and/or 
Operational subsidies, Landlord Engagement, 
Homeless Prevention, Interim Sheltering and/or 
Operational Subsidies, Coordinated Entry System 
Supports, Transitional Housing, other (please list) 

Grant Amount 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 3 

2.PROJECT INFORMATION: 
 

Title of proposed project: _________________________________________________________ 

 

Project Address: ________________________________________________________ 

 

City:  _____________________________________ Zip: ______________________ 

 

Project anticipated start date for serving clients: ______________________ 

 

HHAP-5 Priority Need Addressed (listed in order of priority per CoC Board Approval): 

 

1. ☐  Delivery of Permanent Housing 
(Priority)              

☐  This application includes Youth 
Set aside     

6. ☐ Operating Subsidies Interim Housing 
(existing shelters only/ youth only eligible) 

☐  This application includes Youth Set aside     

2. ☐  Operational Subsidies- Permanent 
Housing (Priority) 

☐  This application includes Youth 
Set aside     

7. ☐ Youth Services Coordination (Youth 
Provider only) 

3. ☐ Prevention and Shelter Diversion 
(Priority) 

☐  This application includes Youth 
Set aside     

8. ☐ Youth Systems Support (Youth Provider 
only) 

4. ☐ Rapid Re-Housing (Priority) 

☐  This application includes Youth 
Set aside     

9. ☐ Youth Street Outreach (Youth Provider 
only) 

10. ☐ HMIS Administration (HMIS Administration eligible only) 

     

          

Number of beneficiaries to be served by the project: ________ 

Number of unaccompanied Youth (18-24) beneficiaries to be served by the project: ________ 

 

a. Project service area (check all that apply): 

☐ Camarillo ☐ Fillmore  ☐ Moorpark 

☐ Ojai   ☐ Oxnard  ☐ Port Hueneme 

☐ Santa Paula ☐ Simi Valley  ☐ Thousand Oaks 

☐ Ventura  ☐ County-wide  ☐ Unincorporated County  

 

b. Amount requested for this project: $_______________________________________ 

(Please note, only Youth Set Aside may exceed the funding request) 

c. Amount of leveraged funds available for this project: $________________________ 

 

d. Total project cost (all sources): $__________________________________________ 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 4 

Note: The amounts for b, c and d should equal the amounts in Project Budget. 

Comprehensive budget should be submitted in provided budget template. Permanent 

Supportive Housing Applications should submit the PSH program budget.  

 

 Which CoC priorities best align with the project? You may list more than one; be specific: 

  

Identify the population(s) that the project will serve (check all that apply): 

  ☐ Single Adults      ☐ Older Adults 55+ 

  ☐ Families with children    ☐ Persons with disabilities 

  ☐ Unaccompanied Transitional Age Youth (TAY) 18 to 24 years old  

  ☐ Veterans  

  ☐ Chronic Homeless        

3. SUBRECEPIENTS: 
 

Does your agency plan to administer HHAP funds or award them to a service 

provider/subrecipient?  __________________________________________ 

 

Service Provider/Subrecipient: ____________________________________ 

Subject to review and approval by the Data Performance and Evaluations committee. Sub-

recipient must be in good standing with CoC and provide evidence of non-suspension/debarment 

from all parties. Subject to same requirements as recipient (reference page 18 and 19 of HHAP 5 

Guidance). 

 

 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 5 

4. PROGRAM DESIGN (20 points): Please describe below the eligible activity and program you 

intend to implement with HHAP-5 funds? 
Summarize the project and intended use of grant funds. Describe how the project will benefit 

the target population(s) and meet an immediate need in addressing homelessness in the 

Continuum of Care by quickly moving participants into permanent housing. Describe how this 

funding will expand capacity or create new resources to shelter and/or house homeless 

people/families. Identify best practices that will be utilized. Please include how the program will 

follow the Housing First/Low Barrier model.  If applying for Interim Sheltering, describe a 

pathway to permanent housing.   

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 6 

Please attach a comprehensive budget including ALL funding sources, if any that have been 

committed to the project you are applying for or other funds pending award or notification of 

award.  Address how HHAP 5 funds will be used to fill project cost gaps. Note: (HHAP funds 

cannot be used to supplant/ replace current/pending funds). Failure to provide grant sources 

may impact contracting agreements. To prevent duplication of funding, information is required 

to be disclosed at time of application.    

 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 7 

Coordination and Collaboration (12 points) – Describe how resources will be leveraged to address the 

needs of the target population(s). How will the project collaborate with other organizations and 

programs to address the needs of the target population and participate in Pathways to Home and HMIS. 

Please describe if this application will support a new collaborative effort with agencies who are not yet 

connected to VC CoC. 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 8 

 

Please include any partnerships for furthering racial equity and serving underserved populations 

including BIPOC, LGBTQ, undocumented persons, and persons with limited English proficiency. Please 

describe how the program will commit and implement action to ensuring equitable provision of services for Black, 

Asian, Native and Indigenous, Latinx, Pacific Islanders and other People of Color who are disproportionately 

impacted by homelessness. Consider policy changes to ensure racial and gender equity.  Please provide the date of 

your last racial/gender equity assessment.  Notate findings and address how the proposed program will support 

those who are disproportionately impacted. 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 9 

Core Practices – State regulation section 8409 contain the Core Practices: Coordinated Entry Process 

(section 8409(a)); and Housing First Practices (section 8409(b)) Use the table below to document which 

of the following your agency or contracted agency/service provider has adopted for implementation of 

programs: 

Guidance 
Relates to:  

(check all that apply) 

 
1. Has your agency/service provider adopted the local CoC’s 
Written Standards with regards to the following?  
 

 

□  Coordinated Entry 
 

□  Housing First 
 

 
 

 
2. Does your agency/service provider have Program Rules, Policies 
and Procedures that address the following? 
 
 

 

□  Coordinated Entry 
 

□  Housing First 
 

 
 

3. Does your agency/service provider commit to adopt and follow 
the local CoC Coordinated Entry Policies and Procedures? 
 

□  Coordinated Entry 
 

□  Housing First 
 

 
4. Does your agency utilize HMIS for entering client level data. 
Please include attachments that demonstrate data quality and 
annual performance of an existing project from January 1, 2022- 
December 31, 2022.  

 

□  HMIS participating project  
 
□  Attach HMIS generated reports 
showing data quality and 
performance of existing project 
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 10 

5. MANAGEMENT & PAST EXPERIENCE: 
Please describe your organization’s and/or sub-recipient’s experience in successfully conducting this 

type of activity. Identify any skills, current services, or accomplishments that demonstrate your capacity 

for success. Please include staffing ratio per beneficiary. Please include any relevant past performance 

data that is relevant to this proposal. 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 11 

Please describe your success in submitting previous HHAP Round I/II/III and/or IV, CoC and ESG quarterly 
reporting and drawdowns. Have you had any challenges implementing your project(s), onboarding with 
HMIS/CES, accepting referrals via CES or submitting draw down requests? Have you returned funds back 
to HUD or the State in the past?  Did your previous projects implement within the 45–60-day period? If 
not, please provide justification. Did your previous projects commit to serving Youth? If so, please 
provide the number of youth beneficiaries committed to be served on your application and number of 
youth served to date. 
 

☐ Not applicable (not a recipient of previous HHAP, CoC or ESG rounds) 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 12 

6. IMPACT & EFFECTIVENESS: 
Performance Measures – Describe the objectives and outcomes of the proposed program(s) and 

how will you measure the effectiveness of your project in meeting these outcomes. Goals should 

align with VC CoC adopted performance benchmarks.  

 

 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 13 

Please describe how this program will help achieve improved system performance for the Ventura 

County homeless services system.  Describe the strategies you intend to implement to meet the 

outcome goals (be descriptive and include the percentage you intend to meet for each item). 

1. Reducing the number of persons experiencing homelessness 

2. Reducing the number of persons who become homeless for the first time 

3. Increasing the number of people exiting homelessness into permanent housing 

4. Reducing the length of time persons remain homeless 

5. Reducing the number of persons who return to homelessness after exiting homelessness 

6. Increasing successful placements from street outreach 

7. Focus on equity goals related to underserved populations and populations 
disproportionately impacted by homelessness 

 

 
 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 14 

(Continued) 

 
 

 
 
 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 15 

7. SUSTAINABILITY: 
Please explain plans your agency has for future sustainability of this proposed program and/or 
service. How will your agency leverage other funds beyond this one-time funding opportunity of 
HHAP-Round 5? Please detail your agency’s experience in leverage state, federal, local and 
private dollars to support your programs.  

 

 
 
 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 16 

VC CoC will consider how much each project spends to serve and house an individual or family 

as compared to other projects serving similar populations. The State of California and HUD 

state that the project must be cost-effective and not deviate substantially from the norm in that 

locale for the type of activity including case management and other supportive services. Is your 

intended project cost-effective concerning case management and other supportive services?  

 Yes 

 No 
Please explain your response in the box below and provide the cost per 

benef iciary (expand box as needed). 

 

 

 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 17 

8. AGENCY CERTIFICATIONS: 
The following certification must be completed and signed by an authorized agency 

representative to be further considered for HHAP program funding. 

 

The undersigned agency hereby certifies that: 

a. The information contained herein and in the attached is complete and accurate. No material 
information has been omitted, including financial information.  
 
[U.S. Code, Title 31, Section 3729, False Claims, provides a civil penalty of not less than 
$5,000 and not more than $10,000, plus 3 times the amount of damages for any person 
who knowingly presents, or causes to be presented, a false or fraudulent claim; or who 
knowingly makes, or caused to be used, a false record or statement; or conspires to defraud 
the Government by getting a false or fraudulent claim allowed or paid. HUD will prosecute 
false claims and statements and conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 
U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)]. 
 

b. The agency certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that its principals are not 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal debarment or agency. 
 

c. The agency shall comply with all federal and County policies and requirements applicable to 
the HAAP program as appropriate for the funding if received.  
 

d. The proposed project will assist in alleviating the homeless shelter crisis in the jurisdiction it 
proposes to serve. 
  

e. If HHAP funds are approved in the requested amount, then to the best of your knowledge, 
sufficient funds will be available to complete the project as proposed. 
 

f. The agency certifies that the funded program will participate in the locally approved HMIS 
system and CES. 

 
g. If HHAP funds are approved in the requested amount, the agency will provide a final budget 

summary. 
 

 

Name of Agency 

 

Typed Name and Title of Agency Official 

  

Agency Official’s Signature Date of Signature 

  

Phone Number of Agency Official E-Mail Address of Agency Official 



VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

CALIFORNIA HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM (HHAP) 

2025 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 18 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

November 13, 2024 

VC CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Review and Approval of a Reallocation of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) Continuum of Care (CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-25 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) Grant and 

Authorization for Ventura County CoC Staff to Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a new 

subrecipient. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Ventura County Continuum of Care (VC CoC) was awarded renewal grant funding 

from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for Rapid Rehousing (RRH) during 

the grant term of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. The FY2024-25 RRH grant was previously awarded 

to Lutheran Social Services (LSS) through the competitive HUD CoC renewal process. The VC CoC staff 

were notified in July 2024 that LSS was closing day service operations in Thousand Oaks and had 

intended to continue with the RRH grant services; however, the Chief Executive Officer of LSS informed 

the VC CoC staff on October 18, 2024 that LSS would be pausing all operations in Ventura County and 

will take several months to regroup and reassess to serve our community effectively. This response has 

prompted VC CoC staff to request a reallocation of the FY2024-25 RRH grant due to limited staff capacity 

and grant expertise to comply with HUD regulations.  

DISCUSSION:  There were performance concerns in the prior FY2023-24 with the LSS RRH Grant due to 

delayed quarterly reporting, substandard outcomes, and untimely grant drawdowns. These areas of 

concern were communicated to the LSS team prior to the recent FY2024-25 HUD CoC renewal process. 

The FY2024-25 HUD CoC RRH renewal funding in the amount of $223,295 was placed in Tier 2 through 

the review and ranking due to low performance. VC CoC staff are recommending reallocation to another 

service provider through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process. The VC CoC Data, Performance & 

Evaluation Committee would conduct the scoring and ranking of all proposals with a recommendation to 

be presented to the VC CoC Board for review and approval in January 2025. The HUD CoC RRH grant 

term ends on June 30, 2025 which will require VC CoC staff to quickly issue a new subrecipient contract 

in January 2025. VC CoC staff recommends the following RFP timeline:  

 

Activity Deadline 

VC CoC staff to release a Request for Proposals (RFP) November 14, 2024 

Request for Proposals due date December 6, 2024 

VC CoC Data Committee Meeting - RFP Recommendation Process December 18, 2024 

VC CoC Staff present a recommendation to VC CoC Board January 8, 2025 

 



RECOMMENDATIONS:  

1) Approve the Reallocation of the HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-25 Rapid 

Rehousing (RRH) Grant in the amount of $223,295; and  

2) Authorize VC CoC staff to release a Request for Proposals (RFP) on November 14, 2024 for a new 

RRH subrecipient with the proposed timeline.  

 


	Agenda - November 13, 2024 VC CoC Board
	Item 5 Minutes - October 9, 2024 VC CoC Board-Ammended
	Item 6 - 2024 Ending Veteran Homelessness Quarterly Update
	Item 7 - HHAP 5 Board Item
	Item 7a-2024 VC HHAP-5 RFP and APPLICATION GUIDE_Draft
	Item 7b 2024 VC HHAP 5 APPLICATION_Draft
	Item 8 - FY24 CoC RRH Grant Reallocation

